
 

 

HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT AND HEALTHIER 
COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 
Monday, 6 December 2021 at 1.30 pm in the Bridges Room - Civic Centre 

 

From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey 

Item 

 

Business 

 
1   Apologies for Absence  

 
2   Minutes of the last meeting (Pages 3 - 8) 

 
3   Community Safety Priorities and Progress - Adam Lindridge (Pages 9 - 14) 

 
Report of the Director of Public Health 

 
4   Northumbria Police Update - Superintendent Jamie Pitt (Pages 15 - 18) 

 
The item will cover the following themes and trends not individual crime types at ward 
level:  

        Overview of Threat, Harm, Risk and Vulnerability issues 

        Strategic overview of Policing activity (referencing the importance of partnership 
working) 

        Details of the new Force Control Strategy (see attached) and examples of activity 

undertaken against each of the specific themes 

 
5   Covid 19 Update - Andrew Tate/Ian Stevenson (Pages 19 - 24) 

 
Report of the Strategic Director of Housing, Environment and Healthy Communities 

 
6   Brighten the Day - Holiday Activities & Food Programme (Pages 25 - 28) 

 
Report of the Strategic Director of Housing, Environment and Healthy Communities 

 
7   Work Programme (Pages 29 - 32) 

 
Joint report of the Chief Executive and the Strategic Director of Corporate Services 
and Governance 

 
 

 

Contact: Melvyn Mallam-Churchill, Tel: 0191 433 2149, 

E-mail: melvynmallam-churchill@gateshead.gov.uk, 
Date: Friday, 26 November 2021 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT AND HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
Monday, 18 October 2021 

 
 
PRESENT: Councillor B Clelland (Chair) 
  
 Councillor(s): T Graham, A Geddes, D Burnett, F Geddes, 

H Kelly, Reay, J Green, J Turnbull, K Dodds, R Waugh, 

Anderson and P Maughan 
  
APOLOGIES: Councillor(s): A Wheeler, H Weatherley, S Dickie, 

S Hawkins and K McClurey 
 
CPL1 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  

 

 RESOLVED: 
(i)               The minutes of the last meeting held on 5 July 2021 were agreed as a 

correct record. 

 
CPL2 COVID-19 UPDATE  

 

 RESOLVED: 
(i)               The Committee agreed to receive this update at a future meeting. 

 
CPL3 COMMUNITY SAFETY PRIORITIES UPDATE/PROGRESS  

 

 The Committee received a report providing an overview of the key activities that 
have been coordinated and delivered by Gateshead Community Safety Board within 

the last six-months to address strategic priorities outlined in the Strategic 
Partnership Plan 2020/23. 

  
The Committee also received information relating to the impact of, and some of the 
potential emerging themes of Covid-19 related crime and disorder within Gateshead. 

  
The Committee agreed to receive a more substantive update on this matter at a 

future meeting. 
  
RESOLVED: 

(i)               The Committee noted the report. 
(ii)              The Committee agreed to receive a more substantive update at a future 

meeting. 
 

CPL4 PROGRAMME OF IMPROVEMENT OF GREEN SPACES WITHIN THE 

BOROUGH  
 

 The Committee received a report providing a full update on the current and planned 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

programme of improvement of green spaces in Gateshead. 
  

It was reported that the Committee had received an introductory report outlining the 
areas and themes that would be covered in detail within the report. The Committee 

received a breakdown of the current and planned programme of improvements, this 
information was also appended to the report for information. 
  

The Committee acknowledged the importance of green spaces within the borough; it 
was noted that there had been increased usage of such space throughout the 

pandemic.  
  
A discussion took place on the use and definition of allotments; it was confirmed that 

plots allocated as an allotment must be 75% cultivated with the remaining 25% being 
used for related storage. A comment was made noting that there are some allotment 

plots being misused across Gateshead; the Committee noted frustration that there 
are many people on the waiting list for an allotment whilst many of those currently 
being used are being left in disrepair or being used wholly for storage. 

  
Officers advised the Committee that a new allotments officer had been appointed to 

the Council; it was highlighted that this role had been established to ensure that 
allotment space across Gateshead is being used appropriately. It was noted that the 
allotments officer would also be conducting a review of the current waiting list. 

  
The Committee also discussed the use and maintenance of cycle paths within 

Gateshead. It was noted that information relating to cycle routes within Gateshead 
can be accessed online via the Go Active website. 
  

A question was raised on the use of TTRO’s at Riverside Park to control traffic; it 
was confirmed that event organisers bare the cost for these when they are used. It 

was asked whether alternative powers could be used instead of TTRO’s, such as 
Police powers; officers advised that it is dependent on the nature of the event as to 
whether the Police would support with a road closure or the diversion of traffic. It 

was further noted that TTRO’s are most appropriate for events planned in advance. 
  

A further question was asked regarding the environmental investment scheme as 
detailed within the report. It was highlighted that all Councillors had received a 
briefing on the matter earlier in the year. The Committee were advised that seven 

new members of staff had been appointed with a foreman to clear up ‘unloved’ areas 
of land across Gateshead. It was confirmed that this team would also be deployed to 

support in the removal of fly tipping. 
 

It was asked what flood alleviation works are in pace at Eslington Park; officers 
advised that they would provide an update on this at a future meeting once more 

details are established. 
  
The Committee enquired about the Council’s use of volunteers to support with the 

maintenance of open and green spaces, the Committee also acknowledged the 
success of asset transfers, particularly to those who use Gateshead’s bowling 

greens. It was stated that the Council’s neighbourhoods and volunteering service are 
proactive in recruiting volunteers for various roles to support the Council. 

Page 4



 

RESOLVED: 
(i)               The Committee considered and noted the updates provided within the 

report. 
(ii)              The Committee agreed to receive further updates at a future meeting. 

 
CPL5 HOUSING PERFORMANCE AND COMPLIANCE MONITORING  

  
CPL6 HOUSING REGULATORY STANDARDS SELF-ASSESSMENT (REPORT & 

PRESENTATION)  

 

 The Committee received a report and presentation providing an update on the 
Regulatory Standards self-assessment and action plan. 

  
It was reported that as a social housing landlord, Gateshead Council must ensure 

that it is fully compliant with all aspects of Regulatory Standards and that robust 
governance arrangements are in place to provide assurance and scrutiny. 
  

An overview of the existing regulatory standards was provided, this included the 
‘Home Standard’ which sets out expectations for registered providers of social 

housing to provide tenants with quality accommodation and a cost-effective repairs 
and maintenance service. The Committee were advised that for each regulatory 
standard a self-assessment had been conducted which rated each standard as 

‘good’, ‘satisfactory’ or ‘requires improvement’. 
  

The Committee were advised that the Council had achieved 65% average 
compliance across four consumer standards and rent standards, further details were 
appended to the report for information. 

  
The Committee questioned the planned changes to the housing allocations process; 

officers advised that these changes were being developed in consultation with 
partners and stakeholders with a view to being presented at Cabinet next year. 
  

RESOLVED: 
(i)               The Committee noted the progress made to date. 

(ii)              The Committee agreed to receive additional updates on housing 
performance and compliance monitoring at a future meeting. 

 
CPL7 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE IMPROVEMENT PLAN (PRESENTATION)  

 

 The Committee received a presentation providing an update on the repairs and 
maintenance service. 
  

From the presentation, the Committee were advised that a service improvement plan 
had been developed with support from Pennington Choices. It was reported that the 

plan takes into consideration matters such as the Support Service Improvement Plan 
as well as organisational culture, compliance and safety. 
  

The Committee received an overview of progress made to date from the 
presentation; it was highlighted that home working and hybrid working had been 

factored in to how the service intends to develop. It was also noted that Covid-safe 

Page 5



 

measures are also considered in addition to improvements with online systems. 
  

Officers provided an update on the Council’s Asset Strategy and 5 year plan; 
additionally, the Committee were also advised 31 apprentices had been recruited to 

support the service. The Committee were provided with an overview of barriers 
facing the repairs and maintenance service, this included a backlog in repairs as a 
result of the pandemic as well as pend up demand in the system.  

  
The Committee were presented with an overview of options to improve the backlog; 

officers acknowledged that there was no easy fix for the current situation. The 
Committee were also advised that housing services no longer have the internal 
capacity and resource to deliver services at the same level as before. Officers 

advised that the option of procuring services was an option but that this requires a 
12-16 week lead in. 

  
A summary of the Resource Utilisation Review was provided; it was highlighted that 
this would include a review of commercial data, performance information and 

telematics. 
  

The Committee were also provided with an overview of actions identified as part of 
the ‘Service Improvement Plan’, it was noted that of the 46 actions identified, 43 had 
been complete. 

  
The Committee thanked officers for the honest presentation and acknowledged that 

the repairs and maintenance service had struggled, particularly as a consequence of 
the pandemic. 
  

The Committee commented that they often have difficulty contacting officers to 
follow up on residents’ queries; officers advised that a composite list of contacts was 

being pulled together and that this would be shared with Councillors. 
  
The Committee noted the recruitment off apprentices was welcomed, particularly in 

the current climate where there are skills shortages across industries. Officers 
advised that there is to be a rolling programme for the recruitment of apprentices. It 

was asked whether there was a gender breakdown available for the apprentices who 
had been hired; officers advised that this information was not to hand but overall 
there had been few female applicants. 

  
RESOLVED: 

(i)               The Committee noted the update from the presentation. 
 

CPL7a Housing Compliance  

 

 The Committee received a report and presentation slide providing an update on 

progress to the action plan contained within the voluntary undertaking entered into 
with the Regulator of Social Housing on 29 November. 
  

It was reported that a draft follow up report was received from Pennington Choices 
on 5 October 2021 which reviewed the domestic property portfolio compliance 

position subsequent to the embedding of new governance arrangements and 

Page 6



 

clarification of the communal area compliance data held of the Council’s systems. It 
was highlighted that Pennington Choices have upgraded all areas to reasonable 

assurance. 
  

The Committee were also advised within the report that in response to the risk from 
a lack of operational resource in Gateshead Construction Services for building safety 
compliance work, an additional managerial role to address this is being progressed. 

It was noted that this role would be developed to deliver operational compliance via 
specialist contractors. 

  
It was noted that Tyne & Wear Fire and Rescue had carried out an interim visit to 
Redheugh and Eslington Court and had advised they were satisfied with progress on 

the fire action plan for the buildings. From the report, the Committee were also 
advised that all high-risk asbestos works had been completed across the Council’s 

housing portfolio. The Committee also received updates on electrical safety, gas 
safety, water safety and domestic lifts within the report. 
  

RESOLBED: 
(i)               The Committee noted the report. 

 
CPL8 WORK PROGRAMME  

 

 The Committee received the annual work programme report 2021-22. The report set 
out the current programme for the year with the schedule of meetings and topics 

appended. 
  
RESOLVED: 

(i)               The Committee noted the work programme report. 
  

 
 
 

 
Chair……….……………….. 

 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



   

              
 
TITLE OF REPORT:    Community Safety Priorities – 6 Month Update 

 
REPORT OF:  Alice Wiseman, Director of Public Health – Care, 

Wellbeing and Learning 
 

 
Summary 

This report provides Housing, Environment and Healthier Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (OSC) with a brief overview of the key activities that have been 

co-ordinated and delivered by Gateshead Community Safety Board within the last six-
months to address the strategic priorities outlined within the strategic Partnership Plan 
2020/23.  The report also highlights the impact of, and some of the potential emerging 

themes, Covid-19 in relation to crime and disorder within Gateshead. 
 

 
1 Background 

1.1 The Community Safety Board is a standalone statutory partnership made up of 

five Responsible Authorities – namely: Gateshead Council, Northumbria Police, 
Tyne and Wear Fire and Rescue Service, the National Probation Service and 

NewcastleGateshead Clinical Commissioning Group.  The Board’s purpose is 
to 'ensure partner agencies and services work together to make Gateshead a 
safe place for everyone'.  Its core functions are to: 

 address crime and disorder (including anti-social behaviour and behaviours 
which adversely affect the environment); 

 combat the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances; and 

 reduce re-offending. 

 
1.2 The Board has a statutory duty under the Crime and Disorder Act to produce an 

annual intelligence-led Strategic Assessment (an assessment of need based on 

data) along with a Partnership Plan (which formally sets out the areas that will 
priorities and the activity that will be undertaken locally by the Board).  A copy 

of the Partnership Plan 2020-23 has been attached as Appendix 1. 
 

1.3 As a reminder, the strategic themes that were agreed by the Community Safety 

Board for delivery in 2020-23 are: 
 

(1) Violence, Exploitation and Abuse 

 Serious Violence (including Criminal Exploitation and Knife Crime) 

 Domestic Abuse (including Violence Against Women and Girls) 

 
(2) Thriving Neighbourhoods and Communities 

 Anti-Social Behaviour (Youth, Adult and Place-based ASB) 

 Locality-based Tasking and Problem Solving Arrangements 

 
(3) Community Cohesion and Resilience 

 Hate Crime and Tension Monitoring 

 Preventing Violence Extremism, Radicalisation and Terrorism 

Housing, Environment and Healthier 

Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

06 December 2021 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



   

1.4 These are the areas in which the Board felt we can collectively make a bigger 
impact by working together; however, the Board also remains flexible enough to 

be able to respond proactively to any new and emerging risks and threats not 
linked to these priority areas.  Covid-19 has meant partners have had to react 

to presenting need, which has led to reconfiguring and re-prioritising of services 
to ensure the continued delivery of important frontline services. 

 

2 Crime Performance  

2.1 The table set out in Appendix 2 shows performance of crime and disorder within 

Gateshead from 1st April through to 30th September 2021. 
 
2.2 In the first six-months of 2020/21, recorded crime in Gateshead has reduced by 

1% (-131 fewer reported crimes) compared a 3% increase across Northumbria 
(1,728 additional crimes).  Crime levels in Gateshead continue to remain on par 

with local authority areas across South of Tyne and Wear and the rate of crime 
per 1,000 population remains comparable to our 15 Most Similar Family Group 
national average. 

 
2.3 Crimes against the person have increased on last year – with violence rising by 

4% (+140), robbery increasing by 15% (+7) and sexual offences up 30% (+77).  
Violence against the person accounts for more than a third of all recorded crime 
in Gateshead during the period; albeit, most offences are classified as violence 

without injury.  Theft-related offences such as vehicle crime has fallen by 38% 
(-238), burglary reduced by 3% (-14) and pedal cycle thefts down 35% (-41). 

 
2.4 Demand-related calls to Northumbria Police relating to public safety-type issues 

(such as mental health, suicides and substance misuse has increased in the 

last 12 months) with more complex and multiple needs being identified.  Police 
and Council have also seen increased reporting of anti-social behaviour. 

 
2.6 Feelings of safety and perceptions of how the Council and partners work 

together to tackle community safety issues remains positive.  Public confidence 

surveys have shown local people have a positive perception of how the Police 
and Council are working together to tackle issues alongside increased numbers 

of people who feel ASB is being taken seriously.  In addition, the numbers of 
people reporting positive perceptions of Police visibility in their community has 
also increased in recent months. 

 
Thrive 

2.7 A review of the locations in which crime and ASB incidents are committed has 
shown more than half of all crime that takes place in those neighbourhoods that 
are classified 'Extremely' or 'Very Vulnerable' under Thrive agenda categories – 

and has increased proportionally compared to last year. 
 

Crime 

Vulnerable 

- Extremely 

Vulnerable 

- Very 

Just Coping - 

Only Just 

Just 

Coping - 
Getting By 

Managing Thriving 

2020 22.97% 27.26% 14.39% 15.05% 10.72% 9.61% 

2021 25.25% 26.44% 14.90% 14.59% 9.98% 8.84% 

 

In addition, there has been increased complaints of anti-social behaviour within 
those neighbourhoods that are deemed 'Thriving' and 'Managing' areas under 

Page 10



   

Thrive agenda (with many complaints relating to potential tolerance issues such 
as noise, young people gathering in street/parks and lower-level ASB). 

 

ASB 
Vulnerable 
- Extremely 

Vulnerable 
- Very 

Just Coping 
- Only Just 

Just Coping 
- Getting By 

Managing Thriving 

2020 24.20% 28.84% 14.98% 15.06% 9.18% 7.73% 

2021 23.31% 27.26% 14.58% 15.67% 10.17% 9.01% 

 
3 Progress to date 

3.1 A snapshot of some of the key activities that have been undertaken this year by 
partners to address the priorities of the Board include: 

 

Violence, Exploitation and Abuse 
 

Serious Violence (including Criminal Exploitation and Knife Crime) 

 Supported Northumbria Violence Reduction Unit with the refresh of the regional 
Insight Report and Violence Reduction Strategy for Year 3.  The Insights Report 

highlights takes an evidence-led approach to identifying harm hotspots within 
our community around serious violence.   

 Knife Crime Serious Violence GRIP Funding will be used high visibility targeted 
patrols and problem solving within specific harm hotspots within Inner West and 
Central Gateshead with an aim of to implement a step change in activity to 

suppress and reduce serious violence through  

 Developing Problem Orientated Policing Plans (POP) for harm hotspot areas – 

working closely with Neighbourhood Inspectors to deliver local interventions. 

 Knife Crime Awareness sessions have been delivered by the VRU Education 

Team to young people and practitioners in various settings – including schools 
– which has been well received. 

 Implementation of Year 1 Project ADDER (including drug testing upon arrest) is 

progressing well.  A Gateshead referral pathway is currently under consultation.  

 A partnership analytical hub has been created to support the analysis of drug-

related deaths to help steer partnership activity and enhance our approach to 
placed-based harm. 

 Continue to support disruption of Serious and Organised Crime activity through 
delivery of Operational Sentinel interventions. 

 
Domestic Abuse (including Violence Against Women and Girls) 

 Gateshead Strategic Domestic Abuse Forum has been re-established and has 

started to progress some key areas of work required as part of the Domestic 
Abuse Act.  This includes the ongoing development of draft Needs Assessment 
and Strategy to improve our support offer linked with Safe Accommodation. 

 We continue to offer in-house Domestic Abuse Services in Gateshead providing 
specialist support to safeguard victim and children affected by domestic abuse.  

In addition, a local Behaviour Change Programme has been established that 
works directly with perpetrators to break the cycle of domestic abuse. 

 Secured additional funding to deliver specialist Independent Domestic Violence 
Adviser (IDVA) and Independent Stalking Advocacy Caseworker (ISAC) training 
to upskill our Domestic Abuse Workers. 

 Created a 'Moving On' Groupwork programmes developed specifically to help 
parents to understand impact of domestic abuse and strengthen relationships 

Page 11



   

with their children.  The programme is scheduled alongside existing Freedom 
and START Groupwork programmes. 

 Continue to develop project with Accident and Emergency to support victims of 
domestic abuse and to upskill health staff to spot the signs of abuse. 

 Continue to hold MARAC (Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conferences) and 
MATAC (Multi-Agency Tasking and Co-ordination) meetings to safeguarding 

high-risk victims of domestic abuse. 

 Started to explore how we can extend our community outreach in relation to 
domestic abuse with Edberts House, Beacon Lough Hub and GP surgeries. 

 Produced a short film, working in partnership with Digital Voice, to empower 
local children to tell us how they have been impacted by domestic abuse and 

how their lives could be improved.  This will be utilised in awareness raising, 
training and to inform future service delivery. 

 
Thriving Neighbourhoods and Communities 
 
Anti-Social Behaviour (Youth, Adult and Place-based ASB) 

 Started to plan our and undertake a multi-agency review of anti-social behaviour 

to ensure victims receive the best possible service. 

 Commissioned EdgeNE and Platform, voluntary sector organisations, to deliver 

targeted Youth Outreach and Engagement activities in hotspot areas. 

 Northumbria Police continue to address issues linked with motorbike disorder – 
and a range of activities have been carried out (including encouraging residents 

to report and test purchases at fuel stations alongside enforcement action). 

 Started to develop a standardised approach in relation to Community Triggers 

which will allow victims to demand an independent review of their case if they 
feel no action has been taken by agencies to address their concerns. 

 Funding has been secured, working with the Police and Crime Commissioner, 

for interventions designed to improve perceptions of safety (especially women) 
within transport hubs, parks and open spaces within the Borough.  

 
Locality-based Tasking and Problem-Solving Arrangements 

 Operational Planning and Tasking Group continues to operate effectively with 
strong representation from a range of statutory partners and Council services.  
In addition, Community Safety now regularly attend Northumbria Police’s Threat, 

Harm and Risk Meetings to ensure that we are aware of broader crime and 
disorder issues affecting Central Area Command. 

 Commissioned time-limited outreach work targeting hotspot locations for youth-
related ASB, secondary deliberate fires, criminal exploitation and substance 
misuse issues.  Harm hotspot locations identified by partners based on data, 

intelligence and historic seasonal trends. 

 Continue to make best use of legislation to ensure that we are taking swift action 

when dealing with perpetrators and problem premises – this includes the use of 
Closure Orders, Community Protection Notices/Warnings (CPN/Ws) and Public 

Space Protection Orders (PSPOs). 

 Produced in-depth Problem Profiles to highlight specific crime issues in hotspot 
communities and neighbourhoods.  These profiles provide data to help support 

the development of place-based prevention activity within the area. 

 Undertaken a range of activity associated with seasonal trends (such as Darker 

Nights campaign, Bonfire Night etc) and responded to specific crime patterns 
(such as pedal cycle thefts, motorbikes etc).  

Page 12



   

Community Cohesion and Resilience 
 
Hate Crime and Tension Monitoring 

 Continued to deliver actions outlined in the Hate Crime Strategy and Action Plan 

for Gateshead 2019-22 focus on: increasing awareness of reporting, increasing 
referrals to victim support services and promoting hate crime education.  

 Continue to roll out and support the Gateshead Hate Crime Champions Network 
to increase local knowledge on how to report hate crime and raise awareness of 
support available for victims.  The network includes schools and colleges within 

Gateshead as well as public transport providers and private sector organisations 
– and is commended as best practice nationally.   

 Northumbria Police’s Central Engagement Team delivers a rolling programme of 
bespoke training to schools and education settings.  In addition, Hate and Mate 
Crime training is provided for staff and frontline professionals within Council. 

 Reviewed and improved our Online Hate Crime Reporting and Referral Forms to 
ensure a timelier response to individuals reporting hate crime.  

 Funding has been received by Police and Crime Commissioner to commission 
Lawnmowers Theatre Group to develop a production to promote hate crime and 

Preventing Violent Extremism for those with learning disabilities. 

 Ongoing relationship development with key community groups in Gateshead to 

increase confidence in Police and Council’s approach to hate crime (especially 
in relation to asylum and migration multi-agency partnership work). 

 
Preventing Violence Extremism, Radicalisation and Terrorism 

 Carried out a comprehensive self-assessment relating to Prevent to help further 

reduce the risk of vulnerability to radicalization.  This includes refreshing our risk 
assessments, offer targeted training and community engagement activities and 
re-establishing a local working group to oversee compliance with statutory duty. 

 Embedded the new Channel Panel Guidance (published in November 2020) 
and returned our first annual Assurance Statement to Home Office. 

 Continued to roll our various training sessions to raise awareness of Prevent, 
referral routes and to upskill frontline staff.  Prevent training is now part of the 

corporate induction process within the local authority  

 Special Branch have also carried out some targeted work in Gateshead schools 
to raise awareness of the signs of radicalization with teaching and support staff. 

 Ran a further Channel HYDRA session with North-East Counter Terrorism Unit 
which provides a simulated scenario of a real-life Prevent referral to test local 

approaches and ability to address the case. 

 Raised awareness of different ideologies, groups and risks linked with counter 

terrorist narratives with Council staff and supported Special Branch to establish 
a Prevent Champion Network across Northumbria 
 

4 Recommendation 

4.1 Members are asked to: 

(i) Comment on the activities undertaken in relation to the strategic priorities 
of the Community Safety Board; 

(ii) Continue to receive six-monthly Community Safety updates; 

(iii) Identify any issues/areas that OSC may want to scrutinise in detail at a 
future Committee meeting. 

 

 

Contact:  Adam Lindridge, Community Safety Manager             Tel:  07535 200 777 

Page 13



   

Appendix 1 
 

Gateshead Community Safety Board – Partnership Plan 2020-23 
 

Partnership Plan 

2020-23  
 

 
 

 
Appendix 2 
 

Crime Performance – LALO Report 
 

1 April 2021 to 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
 

Page 14



 1 

 
 

 

HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT & 
HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES OSC 

06 December 2021 
 

 
TITLE OF REPORT:  Northumbria Police Update  
 

REPORT OF: Colin Huntington, Housing, Environment and Healthier 
Communities   

 

 
Purpose of the Report  

 
1. This item will be a presentation by Superintendent Jamie Pitt from Northumbria 

Police. Attached is a copy of the Northumbria Police Control Strategy for 2021 – 

2022 which will support the information provided in the presentation.   
 

Background 
 

2. Committee receive bi-annual community safety updates as part of the annual work 

programme, Northumbria Police attend committee periodically to provide an update 
on current crime trends, priorities, and actions to reduce crime in Gateshead. 

 
Proposal 
 

3. The presentation from Superintendent Pitt will cover the following themes: 
 

 Overview of Threat, Harm, Risk and Vulnerability issues 

 Strategic overview of Policing activity (referencing the importance of partnership 

working) 

 Details of the new Force Control Strategy (appended to this report) and examples 
of activity undertaken against each of the specific themes 

 
Recommendations 

 

4. The Housing, Environment and Healthier Communities OSC is recommended to: 
 

i) Note the contents of the presentation 
 

ii) Consider the impact of the of the information provided on communities in 
Gateshead  

 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  
Contact: Ian Stevenson, ext 2812 

  
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



www.northumbria.police.uk

Northumbria Police 
Control Strategy 2021-2022 

Engaged 
communities,  

a trusted police

Cyber Crime

Economic 
Crime and 

Fraud

Modern Slavery 
and Human 
Trafficking

Protect the 
vulnerable

Intelligent 
Policing

Effective 
Justice

Prevent 
Crime and 
Disorder

Outstanding 
Organisation

Drugs and 
County Lines

Serious Violence 
(knife crime, corrosive 
substances, firearms)

Child Sexual 
Exploitation 
and Abuse

N
P

_2
4

30

Terrorism

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
 

 

HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT & 
HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES OSC 

06 December 2021 
 

 
TITLE OF REPORT:  Impact of Covid – 19 on businesses and the local 

community 

 
REPORT OF: Peter Udall – Strategic Director, Economy, Innovation 

and Growth and Colin Huntington, Housing, 

Environment and Healthier Communities    
 

 
Purpose of the Report  

 

1. This report provides an overview of the some of the support provided by the Council 
and its partners to local businesses and the community affected by the Covid -19 

pandemic.   
 
Background 

 

2. Council previously agreed each Overview and Scrutiny Committee will receive 

regular reports and updates setting out the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on 
areas relevant to the remit of the committee. 
 

3. The following update covers support provided to the local business community and 
support provided to residents who have requested help due to a direct affect of 

Covid-19 or as an indirect affect such as poverty or vulnerability. 
 
Supporting Businesses 

 
4. The Council mobilised quickly and has been proactive throughout the Pandemic 

ensuring that the latest information, advice and guidance is readily available, 
businesses are support and jobs protected.  

 

5. In the lead up to the first national lockdown we established a Business Support Hub 
including an online information portal for business, employers and the self-employed, 

and helpline for businesses impacted by COVID-19 restrictions. To date over 2,850 
businesses have been supported. 

 

6. The Council continues to provide support for businesses and self-employed 
including:  

 Advice on business compliance and safe trading 

 Dedicated web pages, online resource and newsletter circulated to over 3,600 

small businesses. 

 1-2-1 Advice, help and guidance in relation to grant entitlement, discounts and 
other financial support 

 Self-employment and business start-up advice 
 

7. Over summer 2020, the Council paid out £40m in grants to provide a vital lifeline to 
support over 3,600 small businesses in Gateshead. Following the introduction of 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



 2 

local restrictions in September 2020 and in response to the second and third national 
lockdowns a further £36.3m grant funding has been paid out to businesses forced to 

close and those impacted by restrictions on trading and socialising. This includes 
£6.6m Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG), discretionary funding which has been 
used to support:  

 Suppliers to hospitality, accommodation, leisure and events sector 

 Taxi drivers and Driving Instructors 

 Registered childcare providers 

 Home based and mobile hospitality businesses and in person services.  

 Other impacted businesses with fixed property costs, ineligible to access any 
other grant 

 
8. The Council qualified for a second top-up of £1.081m in July which has been used to 

provide additional support to the hospitality sector which was severely impacted by 

government’s decision to delay proceeding to Stage 4 of its Roadmap in June and 
July, but continued to operate at reduced capacity. 
 

9. Government introduced ARG was awarded to the Council to support businesses 
important to our local economy. Guidance envisaged it would be primarily used to 

provide discretionary grants to businesses impacted by COVID 19 but could also be 
used to fund wider business support activities.  

 

10. All grant payments have now been made to qualifying businesses. The remaining 
ARG funds are to be used to fund measures that support businesses through the 

recovery phase of the pandemic, in particular Economy Development Strategy policy 
objectives of: 

 Visitor Economy - Re-imagining culture and tourism in a post COVID world 

 Local Economy - Creating the conditions for a strong local economy that 
maximises the Gateshead pound, and  

 Green Economy - Tackling climate change and environmental degradation  
 

11. During the period business recovery has been further impacted by the end of full 
business rate exemptions and the introduction of employer contributions to the 

Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (furlough) scheme on 1 July 2021. The furlough 
scheme ceased at the end of September 2021. It is understood that there were 
approximately 3,400 Gateshead jobs still furloughed at this time.  

 
12. The fifth and final round of Self-Employment Income Support Scheme (SEISS) 

grants also closed on 30 September and for many businesses that have accessed 

government COVID loan funding the 12-month repayment holiday period also ended 
adding additional cost pressures. Latest available figures suggest that 1,600 SEISS 

claims had been submitted by self-employed residents (1 in 4 eligible) with 75% 
reporting a reduction in turnover of over 30%.   

 

13. The impact of the withdrawal of Government support and in particular the ending of 
furlough is not yet known. 

 
Support to People 

 

14. Working Gateshead the Council’s person centred, place based universal 
employment support approach which is open to any Gateshead resident regardless 

of employment status, continues to deliver both remotely and face to face with slowly 

Page 20



 3 

increasing presence in different venues, at events etc.  It has strong links with the 
area co-ordinators in the community hubs and robust referral mechanisms. 

 
15. As at 31st October 2021 Working Gateshead had received 1,212 contacts from 

residents for help preparing for work, returning to work, dealing with redundancy or 

to progress in work, all of which have been responded to. Intensive (in-depth) one to 
one employment support has been provided for 550 unemployed and economically 

inactive residents resulting in 290 residents being helped into employment since July 
2020 

 

16. The European Social Fund Make A Change project came to its natural end on 30th 
September 2021 and the last participant has exited the programme. The project has 

supported 263 residents with either protected characteristics (significant barriers to 
employment) or who were workless housing company tenants.  100 residents have 
moved into employment/self-employment and 66 have moved into education/training. 

 
17. The Wise Steps project has been extended through to the end of December 2022 

and will provide continued employment support to an additional 100 residents with 
multiple and complex barriers and who are furthest away from the labour market. 
 

18. The Council continues to act as a DWP Kickstart 'Gateway' to help businesses 
access funding to create job placements for 16-to-24-year-olds receiving Universal 
Credit.  To date, the Gateway has: 

 Supported 25 business to access the Kickstart Scheme, 

 Created 96 job placements, and 

 Assisted 33 young people to commence work so far 
 

19. Kickstart vacancies have been created from a variety of businesses across a range 
of sectors, including in the digital and creative sector, traditional manufacturing and 

engineering roles, sales, and administration positions. 
 

20. Gateshead Council itself has successfully applied to operate 16 Social Care and 

Health positions, four within the Care Call service and 12 within Adult Provider 
Services. These vacancies are expected to go live soon. 

 
21. In partnership with Gateshead Older People’s Assembly, Gateshead Council has 

established a Gateshead 50+ employability hub to help people over 50 access 

employment, training and health & wellbeing opportunities. This age cohort has been 
proportionately more adversely affected during the pandemic.  The Hub brings 

together the Gateshead OPA, LearningSkills and Working Gateshead support with 
that of key delivery partners; Jobcentre Plus, National Careers Service, and 
Gateshead College. 

 
22. The Hub went live in the summer and Working Gateshead is receiving referrals for 

those 50+ who are looking for work. Working Gateshead is also attending and 

providing employment support at Bensham Court, a 50+ housing block in 
Gateshead, via the Hub. 

 
23. The current Claimant Count figure for Gateshead continues to fall and is down to 

7,125 (5.6%), this compares to pre-pandemic (March 20) figure of 5,860 (4.6%) so 

whilst continued good progress is being made it should be noted that that the number 
of residents is still 21.6% above ‘normal/previous’ pre-pandemic levels. 

 
 

Page 21



 4 

Community Support 

 

24. In response to the global coronavirus pandemic, Gateshead Council commenced its 
emergency food support in March 2020.  Initially, this was put in place to support 
residents who were shielding and/or self-isolating, but over time it has developed into 

a poverty response.  Since their inception, the Community Hubs (formerly known as 
the Shielding Hubs) have responded to over 12,000 requests for help from 

Gateshead residents throughout the pandemic to access a range of services to 
include: 
 

 Emergency food  

 Routine shopping 

 Social welfare advice 

 Counselling and emotional support  

 System navigation 

 Low level personal care 

 Problem solving e.g. dog walking, travel to essential appointments 

 System navigation  

 
25. In addition to this work the hubs have supported a wide range of initiatives to include 

but not limited to: 

 Writing to over 36,000 residents to check they were okay 
 Telephoning almost 27,000 residents 

 Spoken to 11,000 residents classed as being Clinically Extremely Vulnerable 
 Connected thousands of volunteers to help out 
 Made up, distributed, and delivered  

o over 18,200 food parcels  
o 1,400 cook n eat boxes 

o 1400 school meal pack lunch parcels 
o 865 Christmas hampers 

 Provided over school meal vouchers to children eligible for free school meals 

means tested benefit over the February, Easter, Summer and October school 
holiday periods 

 Issued over 4,300 prepay cards to households with children on free school meals 
 Delivered 59 essential oxygen monitors to residents suffering from covid  
 

Community Vaccinations 

 
26. Between late August and September, the Council has delivered 14 community 

vaccination pop ups in communities where intelligence indicates the take up of the 
vaccine has been low. These pop ups have taken place in local community facilities 

and in a mobile unit (the former Youth Bus), in addition to the community locations in 
Teams, Bensham, Bridges, Deckham and Felling, the vaccination pop ups have 
been deployed in the town centre with the support of the Trinity Square Management 

Committee. 
 

27. A further 7 pop ups are planned over the early part of December in High Fell, 
Bridges, Lobley Hill and Bensham and in partnership with Gateshead College at their 
Team Valley and Baltic Campus sites. 

 
 

 
 

Page 22



 5 

Volunteering 

 

28. Since November 2020 there has been requests to help from an estimated 3,050 
individual volunteers centrally made up of: 

 

 450 individual volunteers through central process 

 200 (average of 10 people per request) from groups/corporate volunteer days 

 50 (average of 12 people per group) from environmental groups 
 

29. Within Gateshead during the initial pandemic and lock down there was a influx in 
informal volunteering and particularly mutual aid groups.  This was reflected across 
other areas nationally.   Mutual aid groups were established right across Gateshead 

but due to their nature weren’t formally registered. The offered a variety of tasks from 
shopping to collecting prescriptions. As this is all informal the groups didn’t have the 

usual safeguarding policies etc. of VCS groups.  
 
30. Information has been communicated on Gateshead Council website about how to 

keep safe during the pandemic for both people wanting to volunteer and those who 
are vulnerable and needing support. These mutual aid groups have gradually 

ceased.  
 
31. Since lockdown has ended and services and projects are beginning to get back to 

the new normal for Gateshead, the amount of people wanting to become a volunteer 
has increased, more people want to help out more.  As a quick comparison this year 

there has been a total of 40 volunteers registered from 1st October – 30th November 
2021.  Back two years ago pre-covid (2019) the number was 15 in the same time 
period for individual volunteering.  

 
32. Corporate organisations are also starting to submit requests again and there have 

been over 50 new roles established since lock down across Gateshead both in 
council service areas and within the voluntary sector.  

 

33. During the pandemic there have also been links developed between services within 
the team with the voluntary sector.  These already existed, however working together 

during the pandemic has enabled the relationship to develop in more depth and 
become more partnership working.  

 
Gateshead Call Centre 

 

34. The Council has since November 2020 been contacting residents who have reported 
as testing positive for Covid 19, initially to check on the welfare of the individual but 
as the pandemic has progressed, the Council continued to take on more 

responsibility for track and trace locally. 
 
35. The Council initially created its own IT system to receive and contact patient 

information, however, the call centre, staffed predominantly by employees from sport 
and leisure now operate using the national test and trace system support by a 

regional body called CRC. 
 
36. Since 3rd July 2020 and the team have had 3,659 test and trace cases come through 

to the Council which have required detailed contact and follow up of known and close 
contacts. In addition, from 27th July team have been completing all support calls, 

totalling 1,293 to date. 

Page 23



 6 

 
Recommendations 

 

37. The Housing, Environment and Healthier Communities OSC is recommended that to: 
 

i) consider the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the areas relevant for this 
committee 

 
ii) identify any areas for further scrutiny 

 

 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Contact: Andrew Tate, ext 2084 and Ian Stevenson, ext 2812 

  
 

Page 24



 1 

 
 

 

HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT & 
HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES OSC 

06 December 2021 
 

 
TITLE OF REPORT: Brighten The Day – Holiday Activities and Food Programme  
 

 
Purpose of the Report  

 

1. To seek the views of the Housing, Environment and Healthier Communities OSC 
on the delivery and impact of the Holiday Activities and Food Programme 2021 and 

highlight the announcement for 2022. 
 
Background 

 

2. DfE funding allocation of £850,000 for 2021 in Gateshead to fund Holiday Activities 

and Food (HAF) over the Easter, Summer and Christmas school holidays for 
benefits-related Free School Meal (FSM) recipients and vulnerable children. 

 

3. The holiday club places are available for the equivalent of at least 4 hours a day, 4 
days a week for 4 weeks (Summer Only) and must include healthy meals (one 

healthy meal a day meeting the School Food Standards guidance), enriching 
activities (provide fun activities with opportunities to develop skills and knowledge), 
physical activities (which meet the Physical Activity Guidelines), nutritional 

education (awareness of healthy eating and how to source, prepare and cook 
nutritious and low-cost food, signposting and referrals: (to other services and 

support) 
 
4. In total there are approximately 7,200 children who are eligible for free school 

meals entitlement in Gateshead, living in approximately 4,500 households but 
clearly the programme aims to help additional families who are struggling to make 

ends meet but do not access this benefit. 
 
5. A HAF Steering group meets regularly to plan and co-ordinate the Brighten the Day 

programme. Representatives include University of Northumbria, Education, Public 
Health, Children’s Social Care, Early Help, Libraries, Leisure, Catering Services 

and VCS organisations. 
 
Delivery over Easter 2021 

 
6. The Easter programme was delivered mainly remotely due to Covid-19 restrictions 

in place. Overall, the programme delivered: 
 

 1,750 Cook n’ Eat food boxes delivered to FSM eligible families with fresh 

ingredients and recipes for 5 meals for a family of 4. 
 

 1,500 activity packs of crafts, books and sport equipment delivered to FSM 
families via primary schools with highest numbers of FSM and in deprived 

areas. 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



 2 

 Tyne and Wear TV on freeview channel, broadcast content aimed at 3 
different age groups for local children and young people over the Easter 

holiday period. 
 

 A limited number of schools, community, church and sports organisations 

delivered small scale face to face holiday clubs. These were exclusive to 
known FSM eligible families connected to the venues and providers. The 

Easter clubs reached 780 children attending 2,600 places, with 12,400 hours 
of delivered activity. 

 

 This included for the first time a club at Cedars School for children with 
physical and learning disabilities. 

 
7. During May half term face to face delivery took place at a small number of venues 

using outdoor facilities, including Gateshead International Stadium with 560 places, 
delivered to 250 children attending 2,600 hours of activities in bubbles. Half term 
delivery was not a requirement of the DfE grant. 

 
Summer Programme 

 
8. The summer clubs in Gateshead were delivered in 52 venues; 23 community 

organisations, 12 schools (including 3 secondary and 2 special schools), 5 sports 

venues and 3 church organisations. Over 21,000 places were delivered across the 6 
week period to approximately 1,450 children per day.  

 
9. Activities included Sports, Dance, Work Skills, Cooking, Cycling, Circus Skills, Bush 

Forestry, Open Spaces, Environmental and Educational Visits, as well as Cook n 

Eat, online activities, exercises and games. 
 

10. The Council’s Catering Service complimented the food provision within community 
venues with hot food in 7 schools, healthy packed lunches at 11 venues without 
catering facilities, and provided healthy snacks to the Active Kidz programme and our 

pop-up sports activities. All other providers and venues organised their own catering 
to School Food Standards. This standard must be met for the HAF programme, and 

so all groups liaised with the Council for quality assurance on their planned menus. 
 
11. The programme was mapped to our latest FSM eligible households’ dataset to 

ensure locations of delivery venues were in close proximity to FSM communities. The 
Gateshead map showed 95% of FSM households were within reach of a summer 

programme location.  
 
12. The expanded programme in 2021 included new venues – Cedars and Gibside 

special schools, new coaching providers – Gateshead Storm Rugby Club, and new 
activities – Learn to Swim @ Gateshead Leisure Centre (for Y5 & Y6 children who 
missed out on school swimming provision). 

 
13. Most of the Summer programme was targeted by the venues and providers to reach 

FSM families and those in need whilst adhering to current covid risk assessments. 
Therefore, most provision was publicised in a targeted way. 

 

14. Referrals from Children’s Social Care and Early Help teams helped link families in 
need to provision at their local schools and community groups, ensuring reserved 

spaces at open provision before bookings went live on Gateshead Brighten the Day 
website. 

Page 26



 3 

 
15. The DfE arranged a virtual visit for the Permanent Secretary, Susan Acland-Hood 

on 24 August 2021. The visit covered the departments priorities and policies and 
included a live stream of holiday clubs taking place. DfE representatives were able 
to speak to children, teachers and providers to receive instant live feedback. 

 
Proposed Delivery over Christmas 2021 

 

16. Due to the shortage of time, volunteer time and facilities availability, the programme 
will be focused on large scale events based strategically in key local venues. 

 
Christmas Fun Days 

 

17. To be held at Gateshead Leisure Centre for three days consecutively, 21st-23rd 
December with 300 guests invited on a ticket only access basis. The tickets will be 

distributed through our network of partner organisations to FSM families and those 
families identified as benefitting most from attending. The programme will include: 

 Live Reindeer 

 Visit to Santa 

 Sports 

 Story Telling 

 DJ 

 Pantomime 

 Hot Food and Refreshments 

 
Community Pantomimes delivered by Blowing a Hooley 

 

18. Our 7 Community pantomimes will be based in 5 community venues 

 Dunston Activity Centre x 2 

 Swalwell Community Centre x 2 

 Winlaton Centre 

 Felling Community Centre 

 Birtley Community Centre 

 
Further pantomime shows will be delivered in schools and community centres in the 

Central area of Gateshead TBC 
 
ICE Skating 

 

19. Families are to be offered a coach trip to the centre for life in Newcastle for family ice 

skating. Ten Coaches will take 480 Gateshead residents to the Centre for Life on the 
18th, 19th, 22nd, 29th and 30th of December 2021. 

 
Targeted Families Support 

 

20. The team will work with 240 children identified by partner organisations to provide 
specialist activities in Childrens Centres across Gateshead. 

 

Community Groups, Sports Clubs & Schools 
 

21. We are delighted that 5 schools, Larkspur, The Drive, Chopwell, Kelvin Grove and 
Whickham will all deliver projects over the Christmas holidays. As will an additional 5 
community venues, Springwell CC, St Chads CC, Happy Feet, and the Comfrey 

Page 27



 4 

Project. A total of 4 sports clubs will deliver a range of activities for children, 
including Redheugh 1957, JJ O’Donnell Sports, Gateshead FC, Futsal and 

Gateshead Harriers. 
 
Cook & Eat Programme  

 

22. Following the success of last year’s ‘Christmas Cook n’ Eat’ programme, this will 

again be rolled out to circa 1,000 families across all areas of Gateshead. This 
Christmas, the offer has been extended and will see each family receiving a box 
with enough fresh and ambient food to feed a family of four for five days, including 

a full Christmas Dinner to include, meat, vegetables, stuffing and gravy. The boxes 
will contain 4 recipe cards with instructions on how to prepare and cook the other 

four meals.  
 
23. Families will be identified by the Council’s Community Hub Network, various teams 

within Children and Families services across the Council, and a select number of 
community organisations and charity partners. Once again, the operation will take 

place at Gateshead International Stadium, where all of the food will be packed, 
despatched and delivered by a team of volunteers with deliveries arriving with 
residents on the 22nd and 23rd December. Calls for volunteers will soon be 

circulated to allow all processes to be planned, which will ensure another smooth 
operation. 

 
Proposals for 2022 
 

24. As part of yesterday’s budget announcement, it has been confirmed that the 
Holiday Activities and Food programme will continue, following the successful 
nationwide delivery of the 2021 programme. The spending review announced over 

£200 million per year for the continuation of the holiday activities and food 
programme, providing enriching activities and healthy meals for disadvantaged 

children during school holidays. 
 

25. Detailed guidance is awaited for 2022, however early indications suggest the size 

and scale of the programme and funding allocations will be broadly similar to 2021. 
 
Recommendations 
 

26. The Housing, Environment and Healthier Communities OSC is asked to note the 

content of the report and comment on the proposals for 2022. 
 

 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Contact: Ian Stevenson, ext: 2812 

  
 

 

Page 28



  

 

HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT &  
HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES OSC  

6 December 2021 

 
 

TITLE OF REPORT:  Annual Work Programme 2021-22 
  
REPORT OF:             Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive 

Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services 
& Governance 

______________________________________________________________________ 
Summary 

 

This report is set out in two parts. The first part highlights how the work of this Committee 
has helped influence / shape the development of decision making / performance 

improvement work during 2020-21 and the second part details the development of the 
work programme for Overview and Scrutiny Committees (OSCs) and sets out the 
provisional work programme for the Housing, Environment & Healthier Communities OSC 

for the municipal year 2021-22. 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Annual Review 
 

1. During 2020-21 the huge challenges arising from the onset of the Covid 19 pandemic 
led to a more flexible approach to scrutiny which recognised the demands on services 

and the Council as a whole but, at the same time, ensured that we met our statutory 
obligations to provide an effective scrutiny function. As such scrutiny concentrated on 
key priority areas alongside a small number of topics already being progressed 

elsewhere which would deliver work that was of genuine value and relevance to the 
work of the wider Council during this period. 

 
2. This involved the OSC monitoring progress on the impacts of the Covid 19 pandemic 

throughout the year and the lessons learned and how this affected the way the work 

of the Council is progressed in the longer term. It also involved the OSC scrutinising 
end of year performance for 2019-20 as it relates to those areas covered in the remit 

of this Committee and helping to shape the ongoing development of the Council’s 
new Performance Framework.  

 
Development of 2021-22 Work Programme 

 

3. Every year each Overview and Scrutiny Committee draws up a work programme 
based on the Council’s policy framework which is then agreed by the Council as part 
of the policy planning process. 

 
4. The Committee’s work programme is a rolling programme which sets the agenda for 

its meetings. It is the means by which it can address the interests of the local 
community, focus on improving services and seek to reduce inequalities in service 
provision and access to services. 

 
5. This year, due to the ongoing uncertainties relating to the Covid 19 pandemic and the 

lack of clarity on the outlook for local government finance it has been acknowledged 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



  

that the approach to developing the OSC work programmes for 2021-22 was likely to 
have to be similarly flexible.  
 

6. It was also noted that a continued focus on the impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic in 
some form or another would be likely to be a major area of focus for the OSCs at key 

points during 2021-22 as would the development of the Council’s new performance 
framework. 

 

7. With this in mind, OSC members have been involved in shaping the focus of the work 
of specific OSCs via email and provided with an opportunity to comment on the 

emerging themes at the scheduled March / April 2021 OSC meetings. The emerging 
themes have taken account of the need to support the Council’s Thrive agenda and 
add value, taking account of the five priority areas outlined in the budget consultation; 

the development of the Council’s new Performance Framework; the Gateshead 
Strategic Needs Assessment and the Council’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

 
8. Subsequently, in line with usual practice, partner organisations have been consulted 

on the themes and have indicated that they are supportive of the emerging themes.  

 
9. The attached provisional work programme (Appendix 1) has therefore taken account 

of the following:-  

 
 The New Performance Framework 

 The Thrive agenda and partnership work generally 

 The Gateshead Strategic Needs Assessment 

 The Council’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

 The five priority areas outlined in the budget consultation 

 Current issues referred to Committees 

 
8      The work programme remains provisional as  

 Cabinet has not had the opportunity to fully review its work programme and it 
may wish to refer further issues to Overview and Scrutiny Committees for 
further consideration. 

 It does not take account of new policy issues which may be identified during 
the year, which Cabinet may wish to refer to Overview and Scrutiny; and 

 It does not include issues identified by members of committees on an ongoing 
basis during the year as a result of scrutiny decisions, call in and councillor call 
for action. 

 
 

Recommendations 
 

10. The Committee is asked to:- 
a) Note the information contained in the annual review and provide any comments. 

b) Endorse the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s provisional work programme for 
2021-22 attached at Appendix 1 and refer it to Council on 22 July 2021 for 

agreement. 
c) Note that further reports will be brought to the Committee to identify any additional 

issues which the Committee may be asked to consider. 

 
Contact:     Angela Frisby                            Ext:     2138 

 

Page 30



Appendix 1 

   
 

Draft Housing Environment & Healthier Communities OSC Work 

Programme 2021-22 

21 June 2021 
1.30pm 

 New Performance Framework – Update 

 Covid -19 Update - to include the impact on 

businesses, both large and small / lessons 
learned/ contributions and collaborative work 
with our community partners. 

 Reorganisation and reintegration of 
housing services 

 Holiday Activities & Food 

 Proposed approach to Programme of 

Improvement of Green Spaces 

 Work Programme 

30 September 2021 

9.00am 
 Housing Performance and Compliance 

Monitoring Training Session 

18 October 2021 
1.30pm 

 Covid -19 Update - to include the impact on 

businesses, both large and small / lessons 

learned/ contributions and collaborative work 
with our community partners/ Holiday 
Activities/Food. 

 Community Safety priorities update / 
progress 

 Programme of Improvement of Green 
Spaces within the Borough – examining 

condition, management and maintenance and 
potential sites for tree planting / sites 
community groups can take on to create 

community gardens and allotments 
 Housing Performance and Compliance 

Monitoring to include a) Housing Regulatory 

Self - Assessment b) Repairs and 
Maintenance Improvement Plan c) Housing 

Compliance 
 Work Programme 

6 December 2021 

1.30pm 
 Covid -19 Update - to include the impact on 

businesses, both large and small / lessons 
learned/ contributions and collaborative work 

with our community partners/ Holiday 
Activities / Food). 

 Community Safety priorities update / 

progress 

 Brighten the Day, Holiday Activities & 

Food Programme 

 Crime update – Northumbria Police 

 Work Programme 

31 January 2022 
1.30pm 

 New Performance Framework – Update 

 Covid -19 Update - to include the impact on 

businesses, both large and small / lessons 
learned/ contributions and collaborative work 

with our community partners. 
 Housing Performance and Compliance 

Page 31



Appendix 1 

   
 

Monitoring to include a) Operational 

Performance b) Compliance Performance c) 
Regulatory Self – Assessment 

 Housing Satisfaction Survey 

 Work Programme 

14 March 2022 
1.30pm 

 Covid -19 Update - to include the impact on 

businesses, both large and small / lessons 
learned/ contributions and collaborative work 
with our community partners. 

 The Council and partners approach to 
locality working? 

 Climate change - Update – setting out 

Council policy and data, a review of our 

ambitions and how we are coordinating with 
other organisations? 

 Work Programme 

25 April 2022 

4.00pm 
 New Performance Framework – Update 

 Impact of Brexit – on businesses large and 
small  

 Housing Performance and Compliance 
Monitoring to include a) Operational 

Performance b) Compliance Performance c) 
Regulatory Self - Assessment 

 Work Programme 

 
Issues to slot in 

 Health Check of Community Centres 

 Results of Covid -19 Survey 

 Resident Influence Panel Update (TBC) 

Page 32


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the last meeting
	3 Community Safety Priorities and Progress - Adam Lindridge
	4 Northumbria Police Update - Superintendent Jamie Pitt
	2430_Northumbria Police  Control Strategy 2021-2022

	5 Covid 19 Update - Andrew Tate/Ian Stevenson
	6 Brighten The Day - Holiday Activities & Food Programme
	7 Work Programme
	Housing Environment HealthierComm OSC Draft Work Prog Appendix 2021-22v4 (002)


